FORM 13
BRIEF OF APPELLANT

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court Of Appeals

APPEAL FROM LAURENS COUNTY
Court Of Common Pleas

Frank R. Addy, Jr, Circuit Court Judge
Case No. 2017CP3000008

Mosi A Bundu And Malcolm DJ Watts, Appellants

v.

Ricky Chastain, as Laurens County Sherriff, Michal Gainey, Socrates D. Ledda, as
Laurens City Police Chief, John Doe (s) , and Laurens City Police Department
Respondents'

Appelate Case No. 2017-001831

[INITIAL] BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Russell W. Harter, Jr.
14 Lavinia Avenue
Greenville, SC 29601
Attorney for the Sheriffs Department

James D. Jolly, Jr.
305 East Calhoun Street
Anderson, SC 29622
Attorney for the City

RECEIVED

FEB 28 2018

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. Plaintiffs are not aware that judge Addy saw the filing and noted that It stated summons or complaint or considered that both attorneys of record had sent answers and interrogatories; at least Mr. Jolly did so
2. The trial court erred by not allowing plaintiffs due process, this case is is not frivolous and a statement provided to one plaintiff by the county sheriffs office brings into question many facts that are untrue about the nature of officers that “deep” on a dropped 911 call, that did not come from Laurens county. The owner of the verizon phone works at at Clemson University and has worked there for 25 or more years and was not in Laurens county the morning of the raid. There are other issues around what is in the police statement.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On the morning of March 5th around 1:00 AM , the Laurens county sheriffs department surrounded Clemson street, Mock Street and Lee streets. The statement said that the dropped call was at 200 Mock Street. The resident denied making any 911 call. He indicated that someone jumped his back yard fence and ran up the back side of all the homes on Mock street. No officers entered his home, he indicated that he did not hear gunshots and that was a ruse for something else. His name is said to be Dennis Buchanan. He has since moved and it seems that the police were looking for him at some point after the incident. Another resident noted in the police statement said no officers approached her as claimed in the statement.

FACTS

Salient facts can be found in the police statement that plaintiff has. The officers may very well have been standing on a meth lab when they claim they hear shots fired. A subsequent resident has told plaintiff that the city cleaned a room of hers up for meth contamination. The paperwork for that can be obtained via FOIA. Or she can be subpoenaed to testify. She lives in 204, plaintiff lives in 206, residents in 208 were told to go back into their homes, how could the police isolate what they claim was gun fire and enter my resident without a warrant. Which flies in the face of equal protection under the law. Mr Harter has mentioned and opened the door on a previous case filed by me regarding assault rifles aimed at me, my being placed in cuffs and a squad car in 2012 which plaintiff thinks can be discussed if this case is sent back to lower court or tried in appeals court. Plaintiff thinks that the officers knew who I was and of this past case. Testimony by my grandson also a plaintiff and his children’s mother will show that an officer entered my bedroom where she was under the covers nude, after holding an assault rifle (s) on my grandson who had on

gym shorts with no pockets and was of no threat. That they handled and unloaded a 12 gauge shot gun legally owned by myself, unloaded and reloaded. It is said that it was clarified that it was not sot gun fire that is claimed to have been heard.

Argument In Reply

Without sounding restating the issue or making redundant arguments which have been set forth in their opening brief, in a cursory man. The appellants offer the following points of clarification.

A summons and complaint was issued to which was answered and a 16(b) dismissal based on a claim of no summons is factually incorrect. There was no dismissal with prejudice. The police report and other facts can be offered at trail.

- 1. Plaintiffs were denied their 14th amendment rights of equal protection under the law.**
- 2. With that many officers, a warrant should have been obtained; they could have remained in place until one was obtained. Which would have been for every house on this street as well as the ones mentioned on Lee street where**
- 3. no homes were entered. Title 16 speaks to this warrantless entry.**
- 4. Excessive force which can be claimed if a gun/ assault rifle is aimed at a citizen when it is clear they are not a treat. Non –contact excessive force 52 U, Rich. L. Rev.**

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

The 14th amendment / clause 1868

52 U. Rich L. Rev.

26366 State V, Weaver S.C. Code Ann. § 17-13-140 (2003

Desroches v. Caprio 156 F. 3d 571, 576 n. 2 (4th Cir. Paraphrasing a New Jersey
Quote there can be no discounting of important principles of our government as
mere platitudes v. T. L. O. 469 U.S. 325 (1985)

1, Because Respondents answered and a combined summons and complaint was typed out, filed and clocked. They cannot use 16(b) to deny plaintiffs due process

Because the apartments were so close and plaintiff had his grandson guarding his home, which is a duplex, because no other home was entered. There was/is a clear and compelling case of unequal protection under the law, especially when they told 208 to "go back into their home"

For the reasons tated, this court should reverse the judgment of the circuit court.

February 25, 2018

Respectfully Submitted,

Mosi A Bundu
206B Mock Street
Laurens, S.C. 29360
864-401-0333
Malcolm DJ Watts
19 Curry Road
Laurens, S.C. 29360
Pro Se Litigants

Mosi A Bundu
206 B. Mock St
Laurens S.C. 29360
Malcolm DJ Watts
1935 Curry Road
Laurens S.C. 29360

RECEIVED
FEB 28 2018
SC Court of Appeals

Proof of Service Letter

This letter is to indicate proof of service to The Attorneys of record and Respondents
~~Ruby Clayton, Gentry Ledda, Michael Grant, Loren Koppie~~
~~James A. Jolly Jr. 1305 N Blvd Anderson S.C. Russell W. Hester 14 Laurens Ave~~
named in the civil case 2017CP3000008. It is being mailed by US postal service on this
date

*James A. Jolly Jr.
S.C.
29601*

February 26, 2017 . TK appellate number for this case is 2917-001831.

Respectfully

Mosi A. Bundu
206B Mock Street
Laurens, S. C. 29360
Malcolm DJ Watts
19 Curry Road
Laurens, S. C. 29360

*Mosi A Bundu
206 B Mock St
Laurens S.C. 29360
Malcolm DJ Watts
1935 Curry Road
Laurens S.C. 29360*

Mass A. Bunkle
306 B. Middle St
Lawson S.C. 29362


RECEIVED

FEB 28 2010


SC Court of Appeals

Court of Appeals
Clerk of Court
1220 South Street
Columbia, S.C. 29201

1000



29201



U.S. POSTAGE
PAID
LAWSON, SC
FEB 28, 10
AMOUNT
\$1.63
R29201463D-05