IN THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In the Court of Appeals

---

APPEAL FROM LAURENS COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

Frank R. Addy, Jr. Circuit Court Judge

---

**RECEIVED**  
MAY 18 2018  
SC Court of Appeals

---

C.A. No. 2017-CP-30-0008  
Appellate Case No. 2017-001831

---

MOSI BUNDU AND MALCOLM DJ WATTS..... Appellants,

v.

RICKY CHASTAIN, AS LAURENS COUNTY SHERIFF,  
MICHAEL GAINEY, SOCRATES D. LEDDA, AS LAURENS CITY  
POLICE CHIEF, JOHN DOE(S), LAURENS COUNTY SHERIFF'S  
DEPARTMENT, LOGAN KANIPE, AND LAURENS CITY POLICE  
DEPARTMENT..... Respondents.

---

INITIAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS LEDDA,  
GAINEY, KANIPE, AND LAURENS CITY  
POLICE DEPARTMENT

---

## **STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL**

Did the circuit court err in dismissing the Plaintiff's case for failure to state a cause of action and/or because no summons was ever served in connection with the case?

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On or about January 4, 2017, the Appellant Mosi Bundu, appearing *pro se*, filed a document entitled "Summons and Complaint" with the Clerk of Court for the County of Laurens, State of South Carolina. (Complaint) Appellant alleged that, after responding to a 911 hangup call at or near 200 Mock Street in Laurens, S.C., Sgt. Michael Gainey and Officer Logan Kanipe, who were officers with the Laurens City Police Department, "entered and searched" 206B Mock Street "without cause and unlawfully." (Complaint, R. p. \_\_\_\_)<sup>1</sup> The Complaint did not include a date for the alleged incident. On February 16, 2017, an Answer was filed on behalf of the City Respondents, wherein it was admitted that Sgt. Gainey and Officer Kanipe entered the residence at 206B Mock Street on or about January 5, 2015. The Answer affirmatively alleges that entry was made with the permission of the occupant, Appellant Malcolm Watts, after the officers heard a gunshot. (Answer, R. p. \_\_\_\_ ) At the same time, the City Respondents also filed a Motion to Dismiss under 12(b)(6).<sup>2</sup> (Motion to Dismiss, R. p. \_\_\_\_ )

On or about June 1, 2017, a hearing on the City Respondents' Motion to Dismiss was held before the Honorable Frank Addy, Jr. (6/1/17 Transcript, R. p. \_\_\_\_ ) Appellants did not appear at the hearing. By a Form 4 "Judgment in a Civil Case" dated and filed on June 1, 2017, Judge Addy rendered the following decision:

---

<sup>1</sup> The Complaint named the following Laurens Police Department employees as defendants: Officer Logan Kanipe, Sgt. Michael Gainey, and Chief Socrates D. Ledda ("City Respondents"). The Complaint also included Ricky Chastain, who was the Laurens County Sheriff, and alleged that the "county claims that they were there in support of the city."

<sup>2</sup> In the Motion to Dismiss, the City Respondents argued that Chief Ledda, Sgt. Gainey and Officer Kanipe, who were employees of the City of Laurens, were sued only in their individual capacities and were entitled to dismissal based on the personal immunity granted by the S.C. Tort Claims Act.

Case is dismissed for failure to state a cause of action and no summons was ever served in connection with the case.

(Form 4 dated 6/1/17, R. p. \_\_\_\_). The transcript indicates that the dismissal was based on Rule 12(b)(6) and Rule 4. (6/1/17 transcript, R. p. \_\_\_\_). The Appellants filed a request/motion to vacate the dismissal on June 2, 2017 (Motion to Vacate, R. p. \_\_\_\_). Following a lengthy hearing on August 1, 2017, Judge Addy denied the motion and entered a Form 4 order dated and filed August 1, 2017 (8/1/17 Transcript, R. p. \_\_\_\_; Form 4 dated 8/1/17, R. p. \_\_\_\_).

Appellants filed a Notice of Appeal on August 31, 2017 (Notice of Appeal, R. p. \_\_\_\_), and an Amended Notice of Appeal on September 13, 2017 (Amended Notice of Appeal, R. p. \_\_\_\_).

### STATEMENT OF FACTS<sup>3</sup>

The Appellants allege the following in their Complaint (quoted as is):

That the city responded to what they described as a "911 hangup from a verizon (9116436081) number, with GPS placing the call at 200 Mock Street" "Approximately 1 sic after being on the scene Before making contact with 200 mock street, Sgt. Gainey and PTL Kanipe heard a gunshot in the immediate area" The county claims that they were there in support of the city. We believe that 206B was entered and searched without cause and unlawfully when no other places were entered on the report, which caused tremendous trauma to Malcolm DJ Watts and Mosi A. Bundu. No one on mock street said a gunshot was heard or fired, not at 200 mock street or to the left or right of 206B mock street.

(Complaint, R. p. \_\_\_\_)

---

<sup>3</sup> Only the allegations of the Complaint (R. p. \_\_\_\_ ) are included herein, because "the trial court must base its ruling based solely on the allegations set forth in the complaint" and "the appellate court applies the same standard of review." *Doe v. Marion*, 373 S.C. 390, 395, 645 S.E.2d 245, 247 (2007) (citing *Spence v. Spence*, 368 S.C. 106, 116, 628 S.E.2d 869, 874 (2006); *Williams v. Condon*, 347 S.C. 227, 553 S.E.2d 496 (Ct.App.2001)) (See Argument I hereinbelow.)

## ARGUMENT

### I. THE DISMISSAL WAS PROPER BECAUSE THE APPELLANTS DID NOT STATE FACTS SUFFICIENT TO CONSTITUTE A CAUSE OF ACTION.

As summarized in *Doe v. Marion*, 373 S.C. 390, 395, 645 S.E.2d 245, 247 (2007), the general rules regarding review of the dismissal of an action pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), SCRCP, are as follows:

In considering a motion to dismiss a complaint based on a failure to state facts sufficient to constitute a cause of action, the trial court must base its ruling solely on the allegations set forth in the complaint. *Spence v. Spence*, 368 S.C. 106, 116, 628 S.E.2d 869, 874 (2006). If the facts alleged and inferences reasonably deducible therefrom, viewed in the light most favorable to the plaintiff, would entitle the plaintiff to relief on any theory, then dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6) is improper. *Baird v. Charleston County*, 333 S.C. 519, 511 S.E.2d 69 (1999); *Stiles v. Onorato*, 318 S.C. 297, 457 S.E.2d 601 (1995). 'The question is whether, in the light most favorable to the plaintiff, and with every doubt resolved in his behalf, the complaint states any valid claim for relief.' *Gentry v. Yonce*, 337 S.C. 1, 5, 522 S.E.2d 137, 139 (1999).

However,

[w]hile a complaint attacked by a Rule 12(b)(6) motion to dismiss does not need detailed factual allegations, a plaintiff's obligation to provide the 'grounds' of his 'entitle[ment] to relief' requires more than labels and conclusions, and a formulaic recitation of the elements of a cause of action will not do. Factual allegations must be enough to raise a right to relief above the speculative level.

*Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly*, 550 U.S. 544 (2007) (internal citations omitted).

"[T]he pleading must contain something more ... than ... a statement of facts that merely creates a suspicion [of] a legally cognizable right of action." *Id.* (citing 5 C. Wright & A. Miller, *Federal Practice and Procedure* § 1216, pp. 235–236 (3d ed.2004))

Following a hearing on June 1, 2017, the Trial Court granted the City Respondents' Motion to Dismiss based on the Appellants' "failure to state a cause of

action.”<sup>4</sup> (Form 4 dated 6/1/17, R. p. \_\_\_\_ ) “In deciding whether the trial court properly granted the motion to dismiss, the appellate court must consider whether the complaint, viewed in the light most favorable to the plaintiff, states any valid claim for relief.” *Spence v. Spence*, *supra* at 628 S.E.2d 874 (citing *Gentry v. Yonce*, 337 S.C. 1, 522 S.E.2d 137 (1999)). The Court’s ruling must be based “solely on the allegations set forth in the complaint.”<sup>5</sup> See *Doe v. Marion*, *supra*. The Complaint does not even include a date that the alleged claim arose. It is not at all clear exactly who the Appellants are including as named defendants.<sup>6</sup> In addition, the only allegations in the “body” of the Complaint are against Sgt. Gainey and Officer Kanipe. As argued in the Memorandum submitted in support of the City Respondents’ Motion to Dismiss, these defendants have personal immunity pursuant to §15-78-70(a) and (b). (Memorandum in Support, R. p. \_\_\_\_ ) Based on the allegations of the Complaint, the Appellants failed to state facts sufficient to constitute a valid cause of action and the Respondents were entitled to dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6) as granted by the trial court.

---

<sup>4</sup> The Court’s dismissal was also based on the County’s argument that “no summons was ever served in connection with the case,” as discussed further in Argument II hereinbelow. (Form 4 dated 6/1/17, R. p. \_\_\_\_ )

<sup>5</sup> Therefore, the additional “facts” and “allegations” included in Appellants’ other pleadings, including the Appellants’ Initial Brief, are not to be taken into consideration.

<sup>6</sup> In the Respondents’ Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss (Memorandum in Support, R. \_\_\_\_ ), the City Respondents argued that the only named defendants were Chief Ledda, Sgt. Gainey, and Officer Kanipe, who had personal immunity under the S.C. Tort Claims Act. The Appellants have never responded to or refuted this argument and made no efforts to correct the confusion related to their intended defendants.

**II. THE DISMISSAL WAS PROPER BECAUSE THE APPELLANTS DID NOT FILE AND SERVE THE REQUIRED SUMMONS.**

The South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure require the filing and service of a summons AND complaint. See SCRCP 3(a).<sup>7</sup> In fact, not only does a court generally obtain personal jurisdiction by the service of a summons, “a judgment is void ... if a court acts without [personal] jurisdiction.” See *BB&T v. Taylor*, 369 S.C. 548, 633 S.E.2d 501 (2006); *Ex parte S.C. Dept. of Revenue*, 350 S.C. 404, 566 S.E.2d 196 (Ct.App.2002). See also *Whaley v. CSX Transp., Inc.* 362 S.C. 456, 609 S.E.2d 286 (2005) (“Jurisdiction ... is the power of a court to decide a case.”) As indicated by SCRCP 4(a):

The summons shall be signed by the plaintiff or his attorney, contain the name of the State and county, the name of the court, the file number of the action, and the names of the parties, be directed to the defendant, state the name and address of the plaintiff's attorney, if any, otherwise the plaintiff's address, and the time within which these rules require the defendant to appear and defend, and shall notify him that in case of his failure to do so judgment by default will be rendered against him for the relief demanded in the complaint.

Although the Appellants filed a document labeled as “Summons & Complaint” with the Laurens County Clerk of Court on January 4, 2017, this document did not include the required information, specifically “the time within which these rules require the defendant to appear and defend” or that “in case of his failure to do so judgment by default will be rendered against him.” (Complaint, R. p. \_\_\_\_). Because a proper Summons was never filed or served, the trial court had no personal jurisdiction over the Respondents and dismissal of the case was proper and should be affirmed. See SCRCP 4, 12. See also *Louden v. Moragne*, 327 S.C. 465, 486 S.E.2d 525

---

<sup>7</sup> The rule requires that both be served either within the statute of limitations period or within 120 days after filing.

(Ct.App.1997) (“A court may not enter a valid judgment against an individual over whom the court lacks personal jurisdiction.”)

**III. THE DISMISSAL WAS WITHOUT PREJUDICE, BUT APPELLANTS WAIVED THEIR RIGHT TO FILE AN AMENDED COMPLAINT BY FILING THE APPEAL.**

On June 1, 2017, Appellants failed to appear at the initial hearing on the Respondents’ Motion to Dismiss but then almost immediately filed a Motion to Vacate the dismissal. (6/1/17 transcript, R. p. \_\_\_\_; Motion to Vacate, R. p. \_\_\_\_) Despite the fact that they failed to appear at the initial hearing, a second hearing was held on August 1, 2017, wherein the Appellants were given ample opportunity to explain their position.<sup>8</sup> At this second hearing, the Judge specifically stated that the dismissal was not with prejudice and that the Plaintiffs could bring another action, assuming there was no statute of limitation issue. (8/1/17 transcript, p. 17, l. 12-16, R. p. \_\_\_\_) The Judge strongly – and repeatedly - recommended that the Plaintiff retain an attorney if he wanted to re-file the action and specifically advised that a Summons would need to be included. (8/1/17 transcript, p. 18, l. 7-11; p. 19, l. 21 – p. 20, l. 4; p. 21, l. 6 – p. 22, l. 1, R. p. \_\_\_\_)

A dismissal of a case “without prejudice” means that the plaintiff can reassert the same cause(s) of action by curing the defects that led to dismissal. *Spence, supra*,

---

<sup>8</sup> At the hearing, Judge Addy specifically explained that “one of the reasons I wanted to give you an opportunity to speak is just to sort of have kind of a new rehearing on the question of whether the suit should be dismissed so that I could get your side of the story and your side concerning what should have to this litigation.” (8/1/17 transcript, p. 9, l. 23 – p. 10, l. 3, R. p. \_\_\_\_)

(citing *Collins v. Sigmon*, 299 S.C. 464, 385 S.E.2d 835 (1989)).<sup>9</sup> Despite the fact that the trial court made it clear that the Appellants could/should make the necessary changes to the Complaint and serve the required Summons (and even recommended to the Appellants that they consult an attorney), the Appellants chose instead to file a Notice of Appeal on August 31, 2017. (Notice of Appeal, R. \_\_\_\_\_)

“When a complaint is dismissed without prejudice and the plaintiff is given the opportunity to file and serve an amended complaint, but instead chooses to appeal, the plaintiff ordinarily waives the right to amend his complaint. The appellate court may affirm the dismissal with prejudice if it determines the lower court properly dismissed the complaint.” *Spence, supra* (citing *Arkansas Dept. of Environ. Quality v. Brighton*, 352 Ark. 396, 102 S.W.3d 458, 468 (2003)<sup>10</sup>). Here, the Appellants chose to appeal the trial court’s ruling rather than amend their Complaint and file a Summons. Therefore, they have waived their right to make such amendments. The case should now be dismissed with prejudice. *See Spence, supra*. This is especially true considering that the two-year statute of limitations provided by the S.C. Tort Claims Act expired on January 5, 2017 and any three-year statute of limitation that the Appellants could try to argue applies expired on January 5, 2018.

---